Angie's List, Inc.
Form 10-Q
July 27, 2017
UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF $^{\rm x}$ 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2017

OR

..TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-35339

ANGIE'S LIST, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 27-2440197

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

1030 E. Washington Street Indianapolis, IN 46202 (Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(888) 888-5478

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted to its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes x No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," "smaller reporting company," and "emerging growth company," in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer x

Non-accelerated filer "(Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company"

Emerging growth company "

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes "No x

As of July 24, 2017, the number of shares of the registrant's common stock outstanding was 60,878,510.

Table of Contents

PART I –	FINANCIAL INFORMATION	Page No. 2
<u>ITEM 1.</u>	Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	2
ITEM 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	<u>15</u>
ITEM 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	<u>28</u>
<u>ITEM 4.</u>	Controls and Procedures	<u>28</u>
PART II -	- OTHER INFORMATION	<u>29</u>
ITEM 1.	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	<u>29</u>
ITEM 1A.	Risk Factors	<u>29</u>
ITEM 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	<u>33</u>
ITEM 3.	Defaults Upon Senior Securities	<u>33</u>
ITEM 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	<u>33</u>
ITEM 5.	Other Information	<u>33</u>
ITEM 6.	<u>Exhibits</u>	<u>33</u>
	<u>Signatures</u>	<u>34</u>

PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Angie's List, Inc. Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (in thousands, except share data)

(in thousands, except share data)	June 30, 2017	December 2016	31,
	(Unaudited	d)	
Assets Cash and cash equivalents Short-term investments	\$38,362 10,480	\$ 22,402 16,541	
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of \$3,039 and \$3,296 at June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively	15,006	16,371	
Prepaid expenses and other current assets Total current assets Property, equipment and software, net Goodwill Amortizable intangible assets, net Total assets	20,251 84,099 77,459 1,145 930 \$163,633	17,002 72,316 82,714 1,145 1,219 \$ 157,394	
Liabilities and stockholders' equity Accounts payable Accrued liabilities Deferred membership revenue Deferred advertising revenue Current maturities of long-term debt Total current liabilities Long-term debt, net Deferred membership revenue, noncurrent Deferred advertising revenue, noncurrent Other liabilities, noncurrent Total liabilities Commitments and contingencies (Note 8) Stockholders' equity:	\$2,953 30,452 20,255 40,661 3,000 97,321 55,092 1,404 328 654 154,799	\$ 2,886 23,128 23,208 42,297 1,500 93,019 56,142 2,032 456 1,245 152,894	
Preferred stock, \$0.001 par value: 10,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding at June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 Common stock, \$0.001 par value: 300,000,000 shares authorized, 69,437,866 and 67,979,486 shares issued and 60,877,344 and 59,420,774 shares outstanding at June 30,	— 69	— 68	
2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively Additional paid-in-capital Treasury stock, at cost: 8,560,522 and 8,558,712 shares of common stock at June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively Accumulated deficit Total stockholders' equity	300,612 (23,734) (268,113) 8,834	290,182) (23,719) (262,031 4,500)
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$163,633	\$ 157,394	

See accompanying notes.

Table of Contents

Angie's List, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations (in thousands, except share and per share data)

(an analysis of the first state of the state	Three Months Ended June 30,		Six Months Ended June 30,	
	2017	2016	2017	2016
	(Unaudite	ed)	(Unaudite	ed)
Revenue				
Membership	\$10,193	\$ 15,645	\$21,717	\$ 31,979
Service provider	62,557	67,415	124,165	134,937
Total revenue	72,750	83,060	145,882	166,916
Operating expenses				
Operations and support	6,928	10,172	15,215	22,381
Selling	23,153	26,983	49,510	54,815
Marketing	20,618	14,432	30,441	33,547
Product and technology	14,905	13,323	29,218	23,357
General and administrative	13,729	12,135	24,595	30,820
Operating income (loss)	(6,583)	6,015	(3,097)	1,996
Interest expense, net	1,469	1,352	2,965	1,968
Income (loss) before income taxes	(8,052)	4,663	(6,062)	28
Income tax expense	10	6	20	13
Net income (loss)	\$(8,062)	\$ 4,657	\$(6,082)	\$ 15
Net income (loss) per common share — basic	\$(0.13)	\$ 0.08	\$(0.10)	\$ 0.00
Net income (loss) per common share — diluted	, ,	\$ 0.08		\$ 0.00

Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding — basic 60,273,98\&0.710,321 59,893,35\&0.862,100 Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding — diluted 60,273,98\&0.9643,950 59,893,35\&0.9637,852

See accompanying notes.

Table of Contents

			T • .	-
Ang	71e	S	List,	Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (in thousands)

(in thousands)	Six Mont June 30,	ths Ended
	2017	2016
	(Unaudite	ed)
Operating activities Net income (loss)	\$(6,082)	\$15
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:	, ,	•
Depreciation and amortization	8,211	5,254
Amortization of debt discount, deferred financing fees and bond premium	450	333
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense	6,030	7,496
Non-cash long-lived asset impairment charge	190	
Non-cash loss on disposal of long-lived assets	3	171
Deferred income taxes	10	
Changes in certain assets:		
Accounts receivable, net	1,365	129
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	(3,249)	728
Changes in certain liabilities:		
Accounts payable	318	(2,542)
Accrued liabilities	6,776	9,557
Deferred advertising revenue	(1,764)	(2,769)
Deferred membership revenue	(3,581)	(4,086)
Net cash provided by operating activities	8,677	14,286
Investing activities		
Purchases of investments	(5,960)	(11,274)
Sales of investments	12,021	11,320
Property, equipment and software	(199)	(3,208)
Capitalized website and software development costs	(2,854)	(8,973)
Intangible assets	(70)	(129)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	2,938	(12,264)
Financing activities		
Proceeds from exercise of stock options	5,919	500
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan	462	
Taxes paid on behalf of employees related to net share settlement	(1,980)	(430)
Purchases of treasury stock	(15)) —
Payments on capital lease obligation	(41)	(116)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	4,345	(46)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents	\$15,960	
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	22,402	32,599
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$38,362	\$34,575
Supplemental cash flow disclosures		
Capital expenditures incurred but not yet paid	\$65	\$820

See accompanying notes.

Table of Contents

Angie's List, Inc.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. Description of Business, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Angie's List, Inc. (collectively with its wholly owned subsidiaries, the "Company", "we", "us" or "our") operates a national local services consumer review service and marketplace where members can research, shop for and purchase local services for critical needs, as well as rate and review the providers of these services. Ratings and reviews, which are available to members free-of-charge, assist members in identifying and hiring a provider for their local service needs. The Company's services are provided in markets located across the continental United States.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("U.S. GAAP") for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP were condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. Accordingly, the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all information and footnotes necessary for fair presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flows in conformity with U.S. GAAP and should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016. The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2016 was derived from the audited consolidated financial statements as of that date but does not include all disclosures required by U.S. GAAP, including certain notes thereto.

The condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments of a normal recurring nature considered, in the opinion of management, necessary to fairly report the results for the periods presented. Operating results from interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for the fiscal year as a whole.

For additional information, including a discussion of the Company's significant accounting policies, refer to the audited consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Operating Segments

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise engaging in business activities for which discrete financial information is available and regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company manages its business on the basis of one operating segment.

Principles of Consolidation

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and reported revenue and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Significant Accounting Policies

Other than as a result of the adoption of certain recent accounting pronouncements as discussed herein, there were no material changes to the Company's significant accounting policies from those described in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 during the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2017.

Prior Year Presentation

In connection with the Company's early adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB") Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-09 during the third quarter of 2016, the Company was required to record a modified retrospective transition adjustment at the time of adoption to reflect an increase in stock-based compensation expense for 2016 related to the Company's forfeitures election under the new standard. Although this adjustment was recorded during the third quarter of 2016, given the modified retrospective nature of the adjustment, the Company was precluded from presenting the full amount of the adjustment for the quarter ended September 30, 2016 and was instead required to update amounts previously reported, yielding a retrospective increase to general and administrative expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016. As a result, the general and administrative expense, operating income, net income and corresponding per share figures presented in the condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 differ from amounts previously reported.

Income Taxes - Valuation Allowance

The Company evaluates whether it will realize the benefits of its net deferred tax assets and establishes a valuation allowance to reduce the carrying value of its deferred tax assets to the amount considered more likely than not to be recognized. Deferred tax assets arise as a result of tax loss carryforwards and various differences between the book basis and the tax basis of such assets. The Company periodically reviews the deferred tax assets for recoverability based on historical taxable income, projected future taxable income and the expected timing of the reversals of existing temporary differences. Should there be a change in the ability to recover deferred tax assets, the tax provision would be adjusted in the period in which the assessment is changed. There was no change to the Company's assessment during the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2017. The Company maintains a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets, and as a result, there is no federal income tax expense recorded in the condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017.

Contractual Obligations

The Company's contractual obligations primarily consist of short-term and long-term operating leases expiring through 2021 and long-term debt comprised of a \$60,000 term loan scheduled to mature on September 26, 2019. In March 2017, the Company provided notice of termination, effective May 1, 2018, of an operating lease for office space that was previously scheduled to conclude in April 2020, yielding a reduction in the Company's future minimum lease payment obligations. There were no other significant changes in the Company's contractual obligations during the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2017 from those disclosed in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016. Total combined future minimum payment obligations as of June 30, 2017 under short-term and long-term operating leases amounted to approximately \$2,503, including \$1,053 in 2017, \$933 in 2018, \$369 in 2019, \$140 in 2020 and \$8 in 2021. The Company had \$58,092 in outstanding borrowings, net of unamortized deferred financing fees and unamortized fees paid to the lender, under the term loan as of June 30, 2017.

Stock-Based Compensation

On June 29, 2016, the Company granted 3,034,329 performance awards of restricted stock units ("PRSUs") under a long-term incentive plan (the "2016 LTIP") to its executive officers and other members of the Company's senior leadership team as of that date. The PRSUs granted are contingent upon the Company's performance with respect to certain predetermined Total Cumulative Revenue targets over the 33-month period commencing April 1, 2016 and concluding December 31, 2018, subject to the Company's achievement of a predetermined cumulative Adjusted EBITDA threshold over the same time period. Of the 3,034,329 PRSUs granted, 2,461,816 PRSUs remained outstanding as of June 30, 2017, representing the number of shares to be issued at the 100% target achievement level for this award. The decline from the number of PRSUs granted under the 2016 LTIP is due to forfeitures since the

date of grant. During the first quarter of 2017, the Company cancelled the "stretch" component of the 2016 LTIP such that the maximum achievement level under this award is now the 100% target achievement level. Accordingly, the number of shares ultimately issued could be 0% or range from 75% (threshold achievement level) to 100% (target, and now maximum, achievement level) of the number of PRSUs outstanding, based on the Company's performance in relation to the performance conditions, and linear interpolation will be applied should Total Cumulative Revenue fall between the threshold and target achievement levels. Any PRSUs earned under the 2016 LTIP will vest in full on May 31, 2019, subject to continued employment as of that date. The Company evaluates whether or not to recognize stock-based compensation expense for these awards over the vesting period based on the projected probability of achievement of the aforementioned performance conditions as of the end of each reporting period during the performance period and may periodically adjust the recognition of such expense, as necessary, in response to any changes in the Company's forecasts with respect to the performance conditions. For the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2017, the Company did not recognize any stock-based compensation expense related to the 2016 LTIP based on the Company's determination that achievement of the performance conditions was not probable as of that date.

Proposed Merger with IAC/HomeAdvisor

On May 1, 2017, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger Agreement") with IAC/InterActiveCorp ("IAC"), ANGI Homeservices Inc. (f/k/a Halo TopCo, Inc.), a wholly owned subsidiary of IAC ("ANGI Homeservices") and Casa Merger Sub, Inc., a direct wholly owned subsidiary of ANGI Homeservices ("Merger Sub").

The Merger Agreement provides that, subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, prior to the effective time of the Merger, IAC will contribute its HomeAdvisor business, along with certain cash, to ANGI Homeservices in exchange for shares of ANGI Homeservices Class B common stock (the "Contribution"). At the effective time of the Merger, the Company will become a subsidiary of ANGI Homeservices through a subsidiary merger in which the outstanding shares of the Company's common stock will be converted into shares of ANGI Homeservices Class A common stock and/or cash (the "Merger," collectively with the Contribution and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, the "Transactions"). ANGI Homeservices will apply to list its Class A common stock on the NASDAQ Stock Market (the "NASDAQ").

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, the Company will merge with Merger Sub, and the Company's stockholders may elect to receive, in exchange for each share of the Company's common stock owned, either one share of ANGI Homeservices Class A common stock ("share consideration"), or \$8.50 per share in cash, without interest ("cash consideration"). Elections by the Company's stockholders for cash consideration will be subject to proration to the extent the total number of stockholders electing to receive cash consideration would result in payment of more than \$130,000. The ANGI Homeservices Class A common stock issued in the Merger will possess one vote per share and is expected to be listed for trading on the NASDAQ following the completion of the Transactions. ANGI Homeservices will also issue shares of Class B common stock, possessing 10 votes per share, to IAC in exchange for the contribution by IAC of its HomeAdvisor business. Following the completion of the Transactions, depending on the number of Company stockholders electing to receive cash consideration, former stockholders of the Company will hold ANGI Homeservices Class A common stock representing between approximately 10% and 13% of the value and less than 2% of the total voting power of ANGI Homeservices stock, and IAC will hold ANGI Homeservices Class B common stock representing between approximately 87% and 90% of the economic interest and approximately 98% of the total voting power of ANGI Homeservices stock.

The completion of the Merger is subject to certain conditions, including the receipt of the necessary approval from the Company's stockholders, the satisfaction of certain regulatory approvals and other customary closing conditions. On July 13, 2017, the Federal Trade Commission granted early termination of the waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 in connection with the Merger. The Transactions are expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2017.

The Merger Agreement provides certain termination rights for the Company and IAC. Upon termination of the Merger Agreement under specified circumstances, such as the Company accepting a superior proposal or the Company's Board of Directors withdrawing its recommendation regarding the Merger, the Company may be required to pay IAC a termination fee of \$20,000.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2017, the Company incurred transaction-related costs of \$4,429, which were recorded in general and administrative expense within the condensed consolidated statements of operations. For additional information on the Merger Agreement, please refer to the Current Report on Form 8-K we filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on May 3, 2017, including a copy of the Merger Agreement filed as Exhibit 2.1 thereto.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - Adopted

In August 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-15: Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments ("ASU 2016-15"). The amendments in this update add to or clarify existing U.S. GAAP guidance on the classification of certain cash receipts and payments in the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-15 will be effective for the Company in fiscal year 2018, but early adoption is permitted. The guidance set forth in this update must be applied retrospectively to all periods presented but may be applied prospectively if retrospective application would be impracticable. The Company adopted ASU 2016-15 effective April 1, 2017, and no material impact on the consolidated financial statements occurred or is expected as a result of the adoption of this guidance.

In January 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2017-04: Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment ("ASU 2017-04"). The amendments in this update simplify the accounting for goodwill impairments by eliminating step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. Instead, if the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss will be recognized in an amount equal to that excess, limited to the total amount of goodwill allocated to the reporting unit. ASU 2017-04 will be effective for the Company in fiscal year 2020, but early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted ASU 2017-04 effective April 1, 2017, and no material impact on the consolidated financial statements occurred or is expected as a result of the adoption of this guidance.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - Not Yet Adopted

In May 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2017-09: Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification Accounting ("ASU 2017-09"). The amendments in this update clarify when changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award must be accounted for as modifications. Under the guidance set forth in this update, entities will apply modification accounting if the value, vesting conditions or classification of a share-based payment award changes. ASU 2017-09 will be effective for the Company in fiscal year 2018, but early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this update on the consolidated financial statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-13: Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments ("ASU 2016-13"). The amendments in this update add to U.S. GAAP a current expected credit loss impairment model that is based on expected losses rather than incurred losses, requiring consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable information to inform credit loss estimates. Under the new guidance, an entity recognizes as an allowance its estimate of expected credit losses, which the FASB believes will result in more timely recognition of such losses. ASU 2016-13 is also intended to reduce the complexity of U.S. GAAP by decreasing the number of credit impairment models that entities use to account for debt instruments. ASU 2016-13 will be effective for the Company in fiscal year 2020, but early adoption is permitted beginning in 2019. The Company continues to evaluate the impact of this update on the consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02: Leases (Topic 842) ("ASU 2016-02"). The amendments in this update require lessees, among other things, to recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet for those leases classified as operating leases under previous authoritative guidance. This update also introduces new disclosure requirements for leasing arrangements. ASU 2016-02 will be effective for the Company in fiscal year 2019, but early adoption is permitted. The Company currently expects to adopt the guidance set forth in this update effective January 1, 2019. As reflected above within this same note, total future minimum payment obligations under existing operating lease obligations as of June 30, 2017 following the anticipated adoption date are not material to the consolidated financial statements. At the present time, there are two such leases in place that will remain in effect beyond the adoption of this update. Accordingly, although the Company continues to evaluate the impact of ASU 2016-02, based on a preliminary assessment, the Company does not expect the adoption of the guidance set forth in this update to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-01: Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities ("ASU 2016-01"). The amendments in this update address certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. In particular, the amendments in this update supersede, for public business entities, the requirement to disclose the methods and significant assumptions used in calculating the fair value of financial instruments required to be disclosed for financial instruments measured at amortized cost on the balance sheet. ASU 2016-01 will be effective for the Company in fiscal year 2018, but early adoption is permitted. The Company does not believe the adoption of the guidance set forth in this update will have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-09: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) ("ASU 2014-09"). This update outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. The core principle of the revenue model is that "an entity recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services." This update also requires significantly expanded

disclosures related to revenue recognition. In March 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-08: Principal versus Agent Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net) ("ASU 2016-08"), amending the principal-versus-agent implementation guidance set forth in ASU 2014-09. Among other things, ASU 2016-08 clarifies that an entity should evaluate whether it is the principal or the agent for each specified good or service promised in a contract with a customer. In April 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-10: Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing ("ASU 2016-10"), which amends certain aspects of the guidance set forth in the FASB's new revenue standard related to identifying performance obligations and licensing implementation. In May 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-12: Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients ("ASU 2016-12"), amending certain aspects of ASU 2014-09 to address implementation issues identified by the FASB's transition resource group and clarify the new revenue standard's core revenue recognition principles. In December 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-20: Technical Corrections and Improvements to Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("ASU 2016-20"), which clarified or corrected unintended application of certain aspects of the new revenue guidance. ASU 2014-09 will be effective for the Company in fiscal year 2018 following the issuance of Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-14: Deferral of the Effective Date in August 2015, which deferred the effective date of ASU 2014-09 by one year.

As of the date of these condensed consolidated financial statements, the Company continues to evaluate the impact of the adoption of ASU 2014-09. The Company has completed the diagnostic assessment phase of the implementation process, including preliminary assessment and project planning, revenue stream scoping and evaluation of internal controls implications. The following revenue streams were identified: membership revenue, service provider advertising revenue and service provider e-commerce revenue. The Company has now progressed to and is currently in the midst of the next phase of the implementation process, which entails, among other things, a detailed analysis of contracts selected for each identified revenue stream to assess whether there are any facts or circumstances leading the Company to conclude that an alternative pattern or recognition of revenue, or treatment of contract costs, will be necessary upon adoption of the new standard. The significant implementation matters yet to be addressed under ASU 2014-09 include completion of the detailed contract analysis for certain revenue streams, concluding on the quantitative impact to the consolidated financial statements, if any, determining the corresponding transition adjustment, if any, upon adoption and providing the required disclosures set forth under the new standard.

The Company currently anticipates adopting ASU 2014-09 effective January 1, 2018, utilizing the modified retrospective method of adoption. Accordingly, upon adoption, the Company currently anticipates recognizing the cumulative effect of adopting this guidance, if any, as an adjustment to the opening balance of the accumulated deficit within the consolidated balance sheet for the period of adoption, and prior periods will not be retrospectively adjusted. While the Company has completed a preliminary assessment of the key provisions of ASU 2014-09, the evaluation of the full impact of the standard on the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures is ongoing, and the Company is therefore not yet able to reasonably estimate the financial statement impact of ASU 2014-09 upon adoption. The Company expects to expand the nature and extent of its disclosures with respect to revenue recognition following the adoption of ASU 2014-09, and the Company continues to actively monitor outstanding issues currently being addressed by the FASB's Transition Resource Group as conclusions reached by this group may impact the Company's application of the new standard.

2. Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share are computed by dividing consolidated net income (loss) by the basic and diluted weighted-average number of common shares outstanding, respectively, for the period. Basic net income (loss) per common share was \$(0.13) and \$0.08 for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and \$(0.10) and \$0.00 for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Diluted net income (loss) per common share was \$(0.13) and \$0.08 for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and \$(0.10) and \$0.00 for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The following table shows the calculation of the diluted weighted-average number of common shares outstanding:

	•	_			_
		Three Mont	hs Ended	Six Months	Ended
		June 30,		June 30,	
		2017	2016	2017	2016
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding —	basic	60,273,980	58,710,321	59,893,356	58,662,100
Total dilutive effect of outstanding share-based payments		_	933,629	_	975,752
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding —	diluted	160,273,980	59,643,950	59,893,356	59,637,852

The following potentially dilutive share-based payments were not included in the diluted net income (loss) per common share calculations as the impact would have been antidilutive for the periods presented:

Three Months Ended June 30,		Six Months Ended June 30,		
2017	2016	2017	2016	
5,238,465	7,376,383	5,633,489	7,358,351	

Stock options

Restricted stock units	1,484,597	2,315,818	1,877,066	2,274,574
Performance awards of restricted stock units	2,781,424	3,614,784	2,758,462	3,631,937
Shares to be purchased under employee stock purchase plan	12,562	12,537	6,316	6,303

The PRSUs outstanding under the 2016 LTIP as of June 30, 2017 were not included in the computation of diluted net income (loss) per common share as the number of shares that will ultimately be issued is contingent upon the Company's achievement of certain predetermined performance conditions and does not meet the criteria for inclusion per the applicable U.S. GAAP guidance.

3. Fair Value Measurements

Whenever possible, quoted prices in active markets are used to determine the fair value of the Company's financial instruments. The Company's financial instruments are not held for trading or other speculative purposes. The estimated fair value of financial instruments was determined using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may materially impact the estimated fair value amounts.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair value is based on the price that would be received upon sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 820, Fair Value Measurement ("ASC 820"), the Company categorized the financial assets and liabilities that are adjusted to fair value based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique, following the three-level fair value hierarchy prescribed by ASC 820, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets but corroborated by market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are used when little or no market data is available.

Valuation Techniques

The Company's money market fund investments, the maturities for which are less than 90 days, are classified as cash equivalents within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy on the basis of valuations using quoted market prices. Short-term investments consist of certificates of deposit and U.S. Treasury securities with maturities of more than 90 days but less than one year. As many fixed income securities do not trade daily, fair values are often derived using recent trades of securities with similar features and characteristics. When recent trades are not available, pricing models are used to determine these prices. These models calculate fair values by discounting future cash flows at estimated market interest rates. Such market rates are derived by calculating the appropriate spreads over comparable U.S. Treasury securities, based on the credit quality, industry and structure of the asset. Typical inputs and assumptions to pricing models include, but are not limited to, a combination of benchmark yields, reported trades, issuer spreads, liquidity, benchmark securities, bids, offers, reference data and industry and economic events. The Company's fixed income certificates of deposit and U.S. Treasury securities are valued using recent trades or pricing models and are therefore classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

There were no movements between fair value measurement levels for the Company's cash equivalents and investments in the six months ended June 30, 2017 or in 2016, and there were no material unrealized gains or losses as of June 30, 2017 or December 31, 2016.

The following tables summarize the Company's financial instruments at fair value based on the fair value hierarchy for each class of instrument as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

Fair Value Measurement at June 30, 2017 Using Quoted Prices in Significant Significant Carrying Active Value at Markets Observable Unobservable June 30, for Inputs Identical (Level 2) (Level 3) 2017 Assets (Level 1) Cash equivalents: Money market funds \$8,552 \$8,552 \$ — \$ Investments: Certificates of deposit 9,280 9,276 U.S. Treasury securities 1,200 1,199 Total assets \$19,032 \$8,552 \$ 10,475 \$

```
Fair Value Measurement at
                                   December 31, 2016 Using
                                   Ouoted
                                   Prices
                                   in
                                           Significant
                                                       Significant
                        Carrying
                                    Active
                                           Other
                                   MarketsObservable
                        Value at
                                                       Unobservable
                        December for
                                                       Inputs
                                           Inputs
                        31, 2016
                                                       (Level 3)
                                   Identica
                                           (Level 2)
                                    Assets
                                   (Level
                                    1)
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds
                        $ 2,419
                                   $2,419 $ —
Investments:
Certificates of deposit
                        13,840
                                           13,837
U.S. Treasury securities 2,701
                                           2,702
Total assets
                        $ 18,960
                                   $2,419 $ 16,539
```

The Company reviews its investment portfolio for other-than-temporary impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the investment may be impaired, considering such factors as the duration, severity and reason for the decline in value as well as the potential recovery period. The Company did not recognize any other-than-temporary impairment losses during the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 or 2016.

The carrying amount of the term loan approximates fair value, using Level 2 inputs, as this borrowing bears interest at a variable (market) rate at June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The Company has certain assets that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis under circumstances and events that are adjusted to fair value in certain circumstances when the carrying values are more than the fair values. The categorization of the framework used to price the assets in the event of an impairment is considered a Level 3 measurement due to the subjective nature of the unobservable inputs used to determine the fair value.

Assets and liabilities acquired in business combinations are recorded at their fair value as of the date of acquisition using Level 2 and Level 3 inputs.

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable and accounts payable reported in the condensed consolidated balance sheets approximate fair value.

4. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets was comprised of the following as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

	June 30, December 31,
	2017 2016
Prepaid and deferred commissions	\$10,742 \$ 8,869
Other prepaid expenses and current assets	9,509 8,133
Total prepaid expenses and other current assets	\$20,251 \$ 17,002

5. Property, Equipment and Software

Property, equipment and software was comprised of the following as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

	June 30,	December 31	,
	2017	2016	
Furniture and equipment	\$14,689	\$ 16,439	
Land	3,466	3,466	
Buildings and improvements	20,459	20,768	
Software	5,738	5,853	
Capitalized website and software development costs	63,279	60,811	
Total property, equipment and software	107,631	107,337	
Less accumulated depreciation	(30,172)	(24,623)
Total property, equipment and software, net	\$77,459	\$ 82,714	

6. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities was comprised of the following as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

	June 30,	December 31,
	2017	2016
Accrued sales commissions	\$2,397	\$ 1,469
Sales and use tax	3,789	3,792
Accrued compensation	7,512	7,369
Uninvoiced accounts payable	13,363	4,333
Legal settlement accrual	_	2,601
Other accrued liabilities	3,391	3,564
Total accrued liabilities	\$30,452	\$ 23,128

7. Debt and Credit Arrangements

Long-term debt, net, was comprised of the following as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

, , ,		\mathcal{C}	
	June 30,	December	31,
	2017	2016	
Term loan	\$60,000	\$ 60,000	
Unamortized deferred financing fees	(875)	(1,071)
Unamortized fees paid to lender	(1,033)	(1,287)
Total debt, net	58,092	57,642	
Less current maturities	(3,000)	(1,500)
Total long-term debt, net	\$55,092	\$ 56,142	

On September 26, 2014, the Company entered into a financing agreement for a \$60,000 term loan and a \$25,000 delayed draw term loan.

On June 10, 2016, the Company entered into a first amendment to the financing agreement which, among other things, (i) extended the commencement of the Company's quarterly repayment obligations under the term loan from September 30, 2016 to September 30, 2017; (ii) revised the financial covenant for minimum consolidated EBITDA, as defined in the financing agreement, for periods ending after June 30, 2016; (iii) revised the financial covenant related to minimum required liquidity; (iv) removed the financial covenant related to minimum membership revenue for periods ending after March 31, 2016; and (v) modified the basis for the calculation of the applicable interest rate.

On November 1, 2016, the Company entered into a second amendment to the financing agreement which, among other things, (i) added a new financial covenant related to consolidated active service provider contract value beginning with the period ending December 31, 2016; (ii) revised the financial covenant for minimum consolidated EBITDA, as defined in the financing agreement and subsequently modified under the second amendment, for periods ending after September 30, 2016; (iii) revised the financial covenant related to minimum required liquidity; (iv) modified the basis for the calculation of the applicable interest rate; (v) modified the dates under which the prepayment premium is applicable; and (vi) modified certain terms related to the delayed draw term loan. Additionally, the second amendment set forth a fee to be paid by the Company to the lender, in three equal annual installments, in connection with the execution of the amendment, and this fee was capitalized along with the existing unamortized fees paid to lender contra liability and is being amortized to interest expense over the remaining term of the financing agreement.

The financing agreement requires monthly interest payments on the first business day of each month until maturity on any principal amounts outstanding under either debt facility. In accordance with the second amendment to the financing agreement, if the Company's consolidated EBITDA for the trailing four consecutive fiscal quarters is less than \$20,000 or the Company's qualified cash, as defined in the financing agreement, is less than \$20,000 as of the applicable period end, amounts outstanding under the financing agreement bear interest at a per annum rate, at the option of the Company, equal to (i) the LIBOR rate for the interest period in effect, subject to a floor of 0.5%, plus 9.5% or (ii) the reference rate, which is based on the prime rate as published by the Wall Street Journal, subject to a floor of 3.25%, plus 8.5%. If the Company's qualified cash is greater than \$20,000, and the Company's consolidated EBITDA for the trailing four consecutive fiscal quarters is:

greater than \$20,000 but less than \$25,000, the applicable LIBOR interest rate is 8.5%, and the applicable reference interest rate is 7.5%;

greater than \$25,000 but less than \$30,000, the applicable LIBOR interest rate is 7.5%, and the applicable reference interest rate is 6.5%; or

greater than \$30,000, the applicable LIBOR interest rate is 6.5%, and the applicable reference interest rate is 5.5%.

The financing agreement obligates the Company to make quarterly principal payments on the term loan of \$750 on the last day of each calendar quarter, commencing with the quarter ending September 30, 2017, and to repay the remaining balance of the term loan at maturity. The Company is required to make principal payments on the outstanding balance of the delayed draw term loan equal to 1.25% of the amount of such loan funded at or prior to the last day of each calendar quarter and to repay the remaining outstanding balance of the delayed draw term loan at maturity. From the effective date of the financing agreement through September 26, 2017, the Company is also required to pay a commitment fee equal to 0.75% per annum of the unborrowed amounts of the delayed draw term loan.

The Company may prepay the amounts outstanding under the financing agreement at any time and is required to prepay the loans with (i) the net proceeds of certain asset sales, issuances of debt or equity, and certain casualty events, and (ii) up to 50% of consolidated excess cash flow, as defined in the financing agreement, for each fiscal year during the term of the financing agreement. As specified by the second amendment to the financing agreement, the Company must pay a 1% premium on prepayments made on or before November 1, 2017, subject to certain exceptions set forth in the financing agreement. The Company's obligations under the financing agreement are guaranteed by each of its subsidiaries and are secured by first priority security interests in all of their respective assets and a pledge of the equity interests of the Company's subsidiaries. The term loan and the delayed draw term loan mature on September 26, 2019. As of June 30, 2017, the Company had \$58,092 in outstanding borrowings under the term loan, net of unamortized deferred financing fees of \$875 and unamortized fees paid to the lender of \$1,033, both of which are being amortized into interest expense over the term of the financing agreement, and availability of \$25,000 under the delayed draw term loan.

The financing agreement contains various restrictive covenants, including restrictions on the Company's ability to dispose of assets, make acquisitions or investments, incur debt or liens, make distributions to stockholders or repurchase outstanding stock, enter into related-party transactions and make capital expenditures, other than upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the financing agreement. The Company is also required to comply with certain financial covenants, including minimum consolidated EBITDA, as defined in the financing agreement and subsequently modified under the second amendment, minimum liquidity, minimum consolidated active service provider contract value and maximum consolidated capital expenditures. Upon an event of default, which includes certain customary events such as, among other things, a failure to make required payments when due, a failure to comply with covenants, certain bankruptcy and insolvency events, defaults under other material indebtedness, or a change in control, the lenders may accelerate amounts outstanding, terminate the agreement and foreclose on all collateral. The Company was in compliance with all financial and non-financial covenants at June 30, 2017.

8. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is regularly involved in litigation, both as a plaintiff and as a defendant, relating to its business and operations. The Company assesses the likelihood of any judgments or outcomes with respect to these matters and determines loss contingency assessments on a gross basis after assessing the probability of incurrence of a loss and whether a loss is reasonably estimable. In addition, the Company considers other relevant factors that could impact its ability to reasonably estimate a loss. A determination of the amount of reserves required, if any, for these contingencies is made after analyzing each matter. The Company's reserves may change in the future due to new developments or changes in strategy in handling these matters. Although the results of litigation and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company currently believes the final outcome of the matters listed below will not have a material adverse effect on its business, consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Regardless of the outcome, litigation can adversely impact the Company as a result of defense and settlement costs, diversion of management resources and other factors.

Williams, et al. v. Angie's List, Inc., 1:16-cv-878. On April 20, 2016, a group of former employees filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Indiana. The lawsuit alleges the Company failed to pay (i) wages earned in a timely manner as required under Indiana Wage Statutes and (ii) overtime wages in violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act (29 U.S.C. §§ 206-07) and is requesting payment of all damages, including unpaid wages, interest, attorneys' fees and other charges. Six amended complaints were filed, adding additional named plaintiffs, and the Company filed its answer to the sixth amended complaint on April 10, 2017. The plaintiffs filed a motion for conditional certification on June 10, 2016, and the Company filed its response brief in opposition on July 15, 2016. The Court denied the plaintiffs' motion for conditional certification on November 30, 2016 but allowed the plaintiffs to refile with a more narrow class definition. On December 9, 2016, the plaintiffs filed a renewed motion for conditional certification. The Company filed its response to the renewed motion on January 6, 2017, and the plaintiffs filed their reply on January 17, 2017. The Court denied the plaintiffs' renewed motion for conditional certification on April 28, 2017. The Company is currently unable to determine the likely outcome or reasonably estimate the amount or range of potential liability, if any, related to this matter, and accordingly, has not established any reserve for this matter.

Crabtree, et al. v. Angie's List, Inc., 1:16-cv-877. On April 20, 2016, three former employees filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Indiana. The lawsuit alleges the Company failed to pay (i) wages earned in a timely manner as required under Indiana Wage Statutes and (ii) overtime wages in violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act (29 U.S.C. §§ 206-07) and is requesting payment of all damages, including unpaid wages, interest, attorneys' fees and other charges. The plaintiffs filed a first amended complaint in May 2016, adding one additional Indiana wage statute claim. The Company filed its answer and defenses on June 9, 2016. Discovery with respect to this matter is ongoing. The Company is currently unable to determine the likely outcome or reasonably estimate the amount or range of potential liability, if any, related to this matter, and accordingly, has not established any reserve for this matter.

Paul Parshall v. Angie's List, Inc., et. al.; David Pill v. Angie's List, Inc., et. al. On July 18, 2017 (Parshall) and July 20, 2017 (Pill), respectively, two putative securities class action complaints were filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Indiana, naming the Company, its directors and IAC, in connection with IAC's acquisition of the Company. The lawsuits allege the Company and its directors violated Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by omitting certain financial information from the Form S-4 Registration Statement filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the Merger. Based on these allegations, the complaints seek equitable relief, including additional disclosure in the Form S-4 Registration Statement, an injunction of the Merger and costs and expenses of the litigation, including attorneys' fees. As of the date of the filing of this report, the Company has not received notice of service of process in these matters. Based on the facts known to date, the Company considers the claims asserted to be without merit and intends to vigorously defend against them.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (this "Form 10-Q") contains statements that constitute "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements other than statements of historical fact, including statements regarding market and industry prospects and future results of operations or financial position, made in this Form 10-Q are forward-looking. In many cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology, such as "may", "should", "will", "expects", "intends", "plans", "anticipates", "believes", "estimates "potential" or "continue" or the negative of such terms and other comparable terminology.

The forward-looking information may include, among other information, statements concerning our estimated and projected earnings, revenues, costs, expenditures, cash flows, growth rates, financial results, our plans and objectives for future operations, changes to our business model, growth initiatives or strategies, profitability plans, availability of debt or equity financing to support our liquidity needs, the expected outcome or impact of pending or threatened litigation, evaluation of strategic alternatives or consummation of the proposed merger with IAC's HomeAdvisor business, including the possibility that the closing conditions to the proposed merger may not be satisfied or waived, failure to obtain a necessary regulatory approval, a delay in closing the proposed merger or the possibility of a failure to consummate the proposed merger, the occurrence of any event that could give rise to termination of the proposed merger, the risk that stockholder litigation in connection with the proposed merger may impact the timing or result in significant costs of defense, indemnification and liability, risks inherent in the achievement of cost synergies and the timing thereof, risks related to the disruption of the proposed merger and the effect of the announcement of the proposed merger on our ability to attract and retain key personnel and maintain relationships with our members, service providers and vendors.

There may also be other statements of expectations, beliefs, future plans and strategies, anticipated events or trends and similar expressions concerning matters that are not historical facts. Risks and uncertainties may affect the accuracy of forward-looking statements, including, without limitation, those set forth in Item 1A of Part I of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, in Item 1A of Part II of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 and in Item 1A of Part II of this Form 10-Q, as well as in other reports we file with the SEC. The forward-looking statements included in this report are made only as of the date hereof. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law.

Overview

We operate a national local services consumer review service and marketplace where members can research, shop for and purchase local services for critical needs, as well as rate and review the providers of these services across the United States. Our ratings and reviews, which are available to members free-of-charge, assist our members in identifying and hiring a provider for their local service needs, and our dynamic tools and products provide members with multiple ways to get work done while reducing the time and effort required to hire a service provider. Our business model, which is designed to identify and leverage opportunities to attract, engage and ultimately monetize traffic on our platforms, provides consumers with tiered membership options offering an array of services at varying price points, including a free membership tier, and enables service providers to take advantage of a host of services and tools based on the nature and extent of their relationship with us.

In 2017, we are focused on three key priorities: (1) building products to increase member engagement, (2) strengthening the value proposition to our service providers and (3) continuing to improve our cost structure. During the second quarter of 2017, we made progress against each of these priorities. We experienced robust membership

growth and had the highest number of visits to our site in our history, introduced a new request-a-review mobile application for our service providers and launched a redesigned consumer mobile application and certain other technology upgrades and enhancements aimed at improving the user experience for members and service providers alike. Additionally, we continued to leverage initiatives implemented in previous periods with respect to our cost structure to drive year over year reductions in operations and support, selling, marketing and general and administrative costs on a year-to-date basis.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2017, we generated net losses of \$8.1 million and \$6.1 million, respectively, on revenue of \$72.8 million and \$145.9 million, respectively. While we expected membership revenue to decline following our introduction of a free membership tier in 2016, we also expected to more than offset that decline with a combination of paid membership additions on premium tiers and increases in service provider revenue. Our progress with respect to our key priorities for 2017 has not yet manifested in the form of revenue growth period over period, but as we continue to execute against our business model, we believe we will enhance the value of our services and generate improved engagement across our platforms, which we, in turn, believe will ultimately drive increased market penetration and revenue growth over time.

Proposed Merger with IAC/HomeAdvisor

On May 1, 2017, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger Agreement") with IAC/InterActiveCorp ("IAC") pursuant to which we will be combined with IAC's HomeAdvisor business into a new, publicly traded company, called ANGI Homeservices Inc. ("ANGI Homeservices"). Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, we will merge with a wholly owned subsidiary of ANGI Homeservices and continue as a wholly owned subsidiary of ANGI Homeservices following the merger (the "Merger"). In the Merger, our stockholders will have the right to elect to receive either one share of ANGI Homeservices common stock ("share consideration") or \$8.50 per share in cash, without interest ("cash consideration"), for each share of our common stock that they own, with the total amount of cash available in the Merger capped at \$130.0 million.

Upon completion of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, depending on the number of our stockholders electing to receive cash consideration, our former stockholders will own between approximately 10% and 13% of the value of ANGI Homeservices, and IAC will own between approximately 87% and 90% of the economic interest of ANGI Homeservices. The Merger is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2017, subject to certain conditions, including regulatory and shareholder approvals. On July 13, 2017, the Federal Trade Commission granted early termination of the waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 in connection with the Merger.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2017, we incurred transaction-related costs of \$4.4 million, which were recorded in general and administrative expense within the condensed consolidated statements of operations. Over the remainder of 2017, we expect to incur an estimated \$20.5 million in additional transaction-related costs, assuming a closing price of \$12.66 per share, which is equivalent to the ten-day volume-weighted average price of our stock as of July 24, 2017.

Key Operating Metrics

In addition to the line items in our condensed consolidated financial statements, we regularly review a number of other operating metrics related to our membership and service provider bases to evaluate our business, determine the allocation of resources and make decisions regarding business strategies. We believe these metrics are useful for investors and analysts to understand the underlying trends in our business. However, as our business evolves, the metrics we currently identify as critical to the evaluation of our operations and performance may change.

The following table summarizes our key operating metrics for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016:

	Three Mont	hs Ended	Six Months	Ended	
	June 30,		June 30,		
	2017	2016	2017	2016	
Total free memberships (end of period)	4,303,566	152,586	4,303,566	152,586	
Total paid memberships (end of period)	2,083,328	3,147,566	2,083,328	3,147,566	
Total memberships (end of period)	6,386,894	3,300,152	6,386,894	3,300,152	
Gross free memberships added (in period)	914,042	152,586	1,763,907	152,586	
Gross paid memberships added (in period)	14,093	129,534	24,449	317,776	
Gross memberships added (in period)	928,135	282,120	1,788,356	470,362	
Average paid membership renewal rate (in period)	65 %	73 %	66 %	74 %	
Participating service providers (end of period)	48,782	49,674	48,782	49,674	
Total service provider contract value (end of period, in thousands)	\$246,303	\$258,467	\$246,303	\$258,467	
Total service provider contract value backlog (end of period, in thousands)	\$147,022	\$151,813	\$147,022	\$151,813	

Total memberships. Total free memberships reflects the number of free members as of the end of the period who joined subsequent to us dropping our ratings and reviews paywall in June 2016, as well as the number of former paid members who requested a change in membership status from paid to free over the same time period. Total paid memberships represents the number of paid members at the end of each period presented. We generally expect that there will be one membership per household and, as such, each membership may actually represent multiple individual consumers.

Gross memberships added. Gross free memberships added represents the total number of new free members added during the reporting period. This figure does not include former paid members who requested a change in membership status from paid to free. Gross paid memberships added reflects the total number of new paid members added in the reporting period.

Average paid membership renewal rate. Average paid membership renewal rate reflects the percentage of all paid memberships expiring in the reporting period that are renewed as paid members.

Participating service providers. As part of our sharpened strategic and financial focus, we are no longer offering service providers the option of only selling e-commerce offers as a means for participating in our network. Accordingly, participating service providers now represents the total number of service providers under contract for advertising at the end of the period. For the periods ended March 31, 2016, September 30, 2016, December 31, 2016 and March 31, 2017, the number of participating service providers, excluding those only under contract for e-commerce, was 50,351, 50,522, 49,441 and 49,200, respectively.

Total service provider contract value. We calculate service provider contract value as the total contract value of active service provider contracts at the end of the period. Contract value is the total payment obligation of a service provider to us, including amounts already recognized in revenue, over the stated term of the contract.

Total service provider contract value backlog. Service provider contract value backlog consists of the portion of service provider contract value at the end of the period that is not yet recognized as revenue.

Results of Operations

The following tables set forth our results of operations for the periods presented in absolute dollars and as a percentage of our revenue for those periods. The financial results below are not necessarily indicative of future results.

	Three Months Ended		Six Montl Ended	hs			J	
	June 30,		June 30,					
	2017	2016	2017	201	6			
	(in thousa	nds)	(in thousa	inde)				
Revenue	(III tilousu	iids)	(III tilousu	iiias)				
Membership	\$10,193	\$15,645	\$21,717	\$31	,979			
Service provider	62,557		124,165		,937			
Total revenue	72,750	83,060	145,882		,916			
Operating expenses	,	,	•					
Operations and support ⁽¹⁾	6,928	10,172	15,215	22,3	381			
Selling ⁽¹⁾	23,153	26,983	49,510	54,8	315			
Marketing ⁽¹⁾	20,618	14,432	30,441	33,5	547			
Product and technology ⁽¹⁾	14,905	13,323	29,218	23,3	357			
General and administrative ⁽¹⁾	13,729	12,135	24,595	30,8	320			
Operating income (loss)	(6,583)	6,015	(3,097)	1,99	96			
Interest expense, net	1,469	1,352	2,965	1,96	58			
Income (loss) before income taxes	(8,052)	4,663	(6,062)	28				
Income tax expense	10	6	20	13				
Net income (loss)	\$(8,062)	\$4,657	\$(6,082)	\$15				
(1) Includes non-cash stock-based of	ompensati	on expens	se as follow	ws:				
Operations and support					\$56	\$57	\$98	\$88
Selling					243	430	691	709
Marketing					83	121	135	227
Product and technology					432	566	1,001	875
General and administrative					1,960	2,657	4,105	5,597
Total non-cash stock-based comper	sation exp	ense			\$2,774	\$3,831	\$6,030	\$7,496

Three Months				Six Months				
Ended			Ended					
June 30,			June 30,					
2017 20		201	2016 201		7 201		16	
14	%	19	%	15	%	19	%	
86	%	81	%	85	%	81	%	
100	%	100	%	100	%	100	%	
10	%	12	%	10	%	13	%	
32	%	33	%	34	%	33	%	
28	%	17	%	21	%	20	%	
20	%	16	%	20	%	14	%	
19	%	15	%	17	%	19	%	
(9)	%	7	%	(2)	%	1	%	
2	%	2	%	2	%	1	%	
	Endo Juno 2017 14 86 100 10 32 28 20 19 (9)	Ended June 30 2017 14 % 86 % 100 % 10 % 32 % 28 % 20 % 19 % (9) %	Ended June 30, 2017 201 14 % 19 86 % 81 100 % 100 10 % 12 32 % 33 28 % 17 20 % 16 19 % 15 (9) % 7	Ended June 30, 2017 2016 14 % 19 % 86 % 81 % 100 % 100% 10 % 12 % 32 % 33 % 28 % 17 % 20 % 16 % 19 % 15 % (9) % 7 %	Ended June 30, June 2017 2016 2017 14 % 19 % 15 86 % 81 % 85 100 % 100% 100 10 % 12 % 10 32 % 33 % 34 28 % 17 % 21 20 % 16 % 20 19 % 15 % 17 (9) % 7 % (2)	Ended June 30, June 30, 2017 2016 2017 14 % 19 % 15 % 86 % 81 % 85 % 100 % 100 % 100 % 10 % 12 % 10 % 32 % 33 % 34 % 28 % 17 % 21 % 20 % 19 % 15 % 17 % (9) % 7 % (2) %	June 30, June 30, 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 14 % 19 % 15 % 19 86 % 81 % 85 % 81 100 %	

Income (loss) before income taxes	(11) % 5	% (4)	% — %
Income tax expense	_ % _	% —	% — %
Net income (loss)	(11) % 5	% (4)	% — %

Comparison of the Three Months Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

D		/ei		
\mathbf{r}	ヒヽ	/ 🖯	H	ıe

Revenue	Three Months Ended June 30,							
	2017		2016		% Change			
	(dollars in thousands)							
Revenue								
Membership	\$10,193		\$15,645		(35)	%		
Service provider	62,557		67,415		(7)	%		
Total revenue	\$72,750		\$83,060		(12)	%		
Percentage of revenue by type								
Membership	14	%	19	%				
Service provider	86	%	81	%				
Total revenue	100	%	100	%				

Total revenue decreased \$10.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2016.

Membership revenue decreased \$5.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2016, primarily attributable to the combined impact of an 89% decline in gross paid memberships added and an eight percentage point decrease in the average paid membership renewal rate. The declines in gross paid memberships added and paid membership renewal rate were largely the result of our introduction of a free membership tier in all markets in June 2016 in connection with the removal of our ratings and reviews paywall. Our paid membership base is decreasing as new members are primarily joining via our free membership offering, and existing paid members are not renewing as paid members at rates consistent with our historical averages, thereby negatively impacting our membership revenue. Adjustments in the level of our advertising spend also factored into the quarter over quarter decline in membership revenue. Our advertising spend decreased \$9.9 million for the twelve months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the twelve months ended June 30, 2016, further contributing to the declines in gross paid memberships added and paid membership renewal rate, thereby negatively impacting our membership revenue. Membership revenue accounted for 14% and 19% of total revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and we expect membership revenue as a percentage of total revenue to continue to decline in future periods due to downward pressure on membership revenue associated with the evolution of our membership plan offerings and pricing, and in particular, the introduction of a free membership tier in 2016.

Service provider revenue decreased \$4.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2016. Given the average duration of our advertising contracts, the transitional challenges we experienced in 2016 in connection with the migration to our new technology platform are continuing to negatively impact our service provider revenue. Further, we experienced a decline in service provider originations in recent periods driven by lower headcount in our sales organization. The number of participating service providers decreased 2% year over year, and service provider contract value and contract value backlog decreased by \$12.2 million and \$4.8 million, respectively, over the same time period. Additionally, the average pricing of service provider contracts has declined over the past year, further contributing to the quarter over quarter decrease in service provider revenue. As growth in service provider revenue and related metrics commonly trails increases in membership, if our membership continues to grow, the anticipated corresponding increases in service provider revenue, contract value and contract value backlog may not be immediate, or occur at all, as evidenced by the fact that the significant growth

in our total membership base in recent periods has not yet produced such increases on a period over period basis. A quarter over quarter decline in e-commerce unit sales also contributed to the decrease in service provider revenue during the second quarter of 2017 as compared to the second quarter of 2016. Service provider revenue accounted for 86% and 81% of total revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and we expect service provider revenue as a percentage of total revenue to continue to increase in future periods as we evolve and enhance the value proposition we offer service providers and as our membership revenue declines in connection with the removal of our ratings and reviews paywall.

Operations and support

Three Months
Ended
June 30,
2017 2016 %
Change

(dollars in thousands)

Operations and support \$6,928 \$10,172 (32) %

Percentage of revenue 10 % 12 %

Non-cash stock-based compensation expense \$56 \$57

Operations and support expense decreased \$3.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2016. The most significant factors contributing to the quarter over quarter decline in operations and support expense were a \$1.2 million reduction in publication costs and a \$1.1 million decrease in compensation and personnel-related expenditures. The reduction in publication costs was, in part, the result of our implementation of a digital content distribution strategy whereby we increased digital distribution, and reduced print copy distribution, of the Angie's List Magazine as compared to the second quarter of 2016, generating a quarter over quarter decline in the costs incurred to provide the magazine to our members. Additionally, as generally only paid members receive a print copy of the magazine, the year over year decline in our paid membership base also contributed to the decrease in publication costs during the three months ended June 30, 2016. The decrease in compensation and personnel-related expenditures was driven by a 40% year over year reduction in operations and support headcount. A decline in credit card processing fees of \$0.5 million, which was largely attributable to lower transaction volumes across our platforms in recent periods, also factored into the quarter over quarter decrease in operations and support expense.

Selling

Three Months Ended June 30.

2017 2016 % Change

(dollars in thousands)

Selling \$23,153 \$26,983 (14) %

Percentage of revenue 32 % 33 %

Non-cash stock-based compensation expense \$243 \$430

Selling expense decreased \$3.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2016. The quarter over quarter decline in selling expense was primarily the result of a \$3.6 million decrease in compensation and personnel-related costs for commissions, wages and other employee benefits, which was attributable to changes in our sales compensation plans and organizational structure, including a 31% year over year decline in our sales organization headcount, as well as the impact of lower service provider contract value bookings in recent periods.

Marketing

Three Months Ended June 30, 2017 2016

% Change

(dollars in thousands)

Marketing \$20,618 \$14,432 43 %

Percentage of revenue 28 % 17 %

Non-cash stock-based compensation expense \$83 \$121

Marketing expense, which is primarily comprised of costs incurred for national television, radio, print and online digital advertising, increased \$6.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2016. Our marketing expense is largely a reflection of the advertising dollars we spend to attract new members and generate traffic to and engagement on our platforms. For the three months ended June 30, 2017, the most significant factor contributing to the quarter over quarter increase in marketing expense was a \$7.1 million increase in advertising spend as we accelerated such spend in the second quarter of 2017 in conjunction with the busier spring and summer months during which consumers are most often seeking our services. In 2016, we accelerated advertising spend in the third quarter, as opposed to the second quarter, following

our introduction of a free membership offering in June 2016, further explaining the fluctuation in marketing expense for the three months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2016.

Product and technology

Three Months Ended June 30. 2017 2016 Change (dollars in thousands) \$14,905 \$13,323 12 % Product and technology % 16 % Percentage of revenue 20 Non-cash stock-based compensation expense \$432 \$566

Product and technology expense increased \$1.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2016. The increase in product and technology expense was largely the result of a \$1.7 million quarter over quarter increase in compensation and personnel-related costs, attributable to the combined impact of a reduction in capitalized internal labor costs associated with our technology platform during the second quarter of 2017 as compared to the second quarter of 2016 and year over year increases in average pay rates for product and technology personnel.

General and administrative

Three Months Ended June 30. % 2017 2016 Change (dollars in thousands) General and administrative \$13,729 \$12,135 13 % Percentage of revenue 19 % % 15 Non-cash stock-based compensation expense \$1,960 \$2,657

General and administrative expense increased \$1.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2016. The most significant driver of the increase in general and administrative expense was transaction costs, amounting to \$4.4 million, incurred during the second quarter of 2017 in connection with our pending merger with IAC's HomeAdvisor business. The impact to general and administrative expense associated with merger transaction costs was partially offset by a \$3.0 million decrease in outsourced service expenditures and professional fees, attributable to a reduction in third-party consulting costs, quarter over quarter. During the second quarter of 2016, we incurred costs related to the execution of our long-term profitable growth plan and optimization of our service provider go-to-market activities that did not recur in the second quarter of 2017.

Interest expense

Interest expense for the three months ended June 30, 2017 was \$1.5 million as compared to \$1.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016, reflecting the impact of recurring monthly interest payments on our outstanding long-term debt and monthly interest charges for deferred financing fee and debt discount amortization.

Comparison of the Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

R	ev	<i>ie</i>	n	11	e

Six Months Ended June 30,						
,	2016		% Char	ige		
(dollars in thousands)						
7	\$31,979		(32)	%		
	134,937		(8)	%		
\$145,882		\$166,916		%		
%	19	%				
%	81	%				
%	100	%				
), in th	2016 in thousands) 31,979 134,937	2016 in thousands) 7 \$31,979 134,937 32 \$166,916 % 19 % % 81 %	2016 % Char in thousands) 7 \$31,979 (32) 8 134,937 (8) 8 2 \$166,916 (13) % 19 % % 81 %		

Total revenue decreased \$21.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2016.

Membership revenue decreased \$10.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2016, primarily attributable to the combined impact of a 92% decline in gross paid memberships added and an eight percentage point decrease in the average paid membership renewal rate. The declines in gross paid memberships added and paid membership renewal rate were largely the result of our introduction of a free membership tier in all markets in June 2016 in connection with the removal of our ratings and reviews paywall. Our paid membership base is decreasing as new members are primarily joining via our free membership offering, and existing paid members are not renewing as paid members at rates consistent with our historical averages, thereby negatively impacting our membership revenue. Adjustments in the level of our advertising spend also factored into the year over year decline in membership revenue. Our advertising spend decreased \$9.9 million for the twelve months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the twelve months ended June 30, 2016, further contributing to the declines in gross paid memberships added and paid membership renewal rate, thereby negatively impacting our membership revenue. Membership revenue accounted for 15% and 19% of total revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and we expect membership revenue as a percentage of total revenue to continue to decline in future periods due to downward pressure on membership revenue associated with the evolution of our membership plan offerings and pricing, and in particular, the introduction of a free membership tier in 2016.

Service provider revenue decreased \$10.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2016. Given the average duration of our advertising contracts, the transitional challenges we experienced in 2016 in connection with the migration to our technology platform are continuing to negatively impact our service provider revenue. Further, we experienced a decline in service provider originations in recent periods driven by lower headcount in our sales organization. The number of participating service providers decreased 2% year over year, and service provider contract value and contract value backlog decreased by \$12.2 million and \$4.8 million, respectively, over the same time period. Additionally, the average pricing of service provider contracts has declined over the past year, further contributing to the year over year decrease in service provider revenue. As growth in service provider revenue and related metrics commonly trails increases in membership, if our membership continues to grow, the anticipated corresponding increases in service provider revenue, contract value and contract value backlog may not be immediate, or occur at all, as evidenced by the fact that the significant growth in our total

membership base in recent periods has not yet produced such increases on a year over year basis. A year over year decline in e-commerce unit sales also contributed to the decrease in service provider revenue during the first half of 2017 as compared to the first half of 2016. Service provider revenue accounted for 85 % and 81% of total revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and we expect service provider revenue as a percentage of total revenue to continue to increase in future periods as we evolve and enhance the value proposition we offer service providers and as our membership revenue declines in connection with the removal of our ratings and reviews paywall.

Operations and support

Six Months Ended June 30.

2017 2016 % Change

(dollars in thousands)

Operations and support \$15,215 \$22,381 (32) %

Percentage of revenue 10 % 13 %

Non-cash stock-based compensation expense \$98 \$88

Operations and support expense decreased \$7.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2016. The most significant factors contributing to the year over year decline in operations and support expense were a \$2.9 million reduction in publication costs and a \$2.4 million decrease in compensation and personnel-related expenditures. The reduction in publication costs was, in part, the result of our implementation of a digital content distribution strategy whereby we increased digital distribution, and reduced print copy distribution, of the Angie's List Magazine as compared to the first six months of 2016, generating a year over year decline in the costs incurred to provide the magazine to our members. Additionally, as generally only paid members receive a print copy of the magazine, the year over year decline in our paid membership base also contributed to the decrease in publication costs during the six months ended June 30, 2016. The decrease in compensation and personnel-related expenditures was driven by a 40% year over year reduction in operations and support headcount. A decline in credit card processing fees of \$0.9 million, which was largely attributable to lower transaction volumes across our platforms in recent periods, also factored into the year over year decrease in operations and support expense.

Selling

Six Months Ended

June 30,

2017 2016 Change

(dollars in thousands)

Selling \$49,510 \$54,815 (10) %

Percentage of revenue 34 % 33 %

Non-cash stock-based compensation expense \$691 \$709

Selling expense decreased \$5.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2016. The year over year decline in selling expense was primarily the result of a \$4.7 million decrease in compensation and personnel-related costs for commissions, wages and other employee benefits, which was attributable to changes in our sales compensation plans and organizational structure, including a 31% year over year decline in our sales organization headcount, as well as the impact of lower service provider contract value bookings in recent periods.

Marketing

Six Months Ended

June 30,

2017 2016 % Change

(dollars in thousands)

Marketing	\$30,441		\$33,547		(9)	%
Percentage of revenue	21	%	20	%		
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense	\$135		\$227			

Marketing expense, which is primarily comprised of costs incurred for national television, radio, print and online digital advertising, decreased \$3.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2016. Our marketing expense is largely a reflection of the advertising dollars we spend to attract new members and generate traffic to and engagement on our platforms. For the six months ended June 30, 2017, the most significant factor contributing to the year over year decrease in marketing expense was a \$2.2 million decline in advertising spend. Although we accelerated our advertising spend during the second quarter of 2017 in conjunction with the busier spring and summer months during which consumers are most often seeking our services, the level at which we spent on advertising was lower for the six months ended June 30, 2017 as

compared to the six months ended June 30, 2016. A \$0.6 million decline in compensation and personnel-related costs, driven by lower headcount, also contributed to the year over year decrease in marketing expense.

Product and technology

Product and technology

Percentage of revenue

Six Months Ended June 30. 2017 2016 Change (dollars in thousands) \$29,218 \$23,357 25 % % 14 % 20 Non-cash stock-based compensation expense \$1,001 \$875

Product and technology expense increased \$5.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2016. The increase in product and technology expense was largely the result of year over year increases in compensation and personnel-related costs and depreciation and amortization expense of \$3.6 million and \$2.6 million, respectively. The year over year increase in compensation and personnel-related costs was attributable to the combined impact of a reduction in capitalized internal labor costs associated with our technology platform during the first half of 2017 as compared to the first half of 2016 and year over year increases in average pay rates for product and technology personnel, while the year over year increase in depreciation and amortization expense was due to our new technology platform, which we placed in service as of the end of the first quarter of 2016.

General and administrative

Six Months Ended June 30, % 2017 2016 Change (dollars in thousands) General and administrative \$24,595 \$30,820 (20) % Percentage of revenue 17 % % 19 Non-cash stock-based compensation expense \$4,105 \$5,597

General and administrative expense decreased \$6.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2016. The most significant driver of the decline in general and administrative expense was a \$6.6 million decrease in outsourced service expenditures and professional fees due to a reduction in third-party consulting costs year over year. During the first half of 2016, we incurred costs related to the development and execution of our long-term profitable growth plan, optimization of our service provider go-to-market activities and activist activity in our stock that did not recur in the first half of 2017. Further, a \$3.5 million contingent liability recorded during the first quarter of 2016 for the Moore litigation also did not recur in the first half of 2017, and we experienced a \$1.0 million decline in compensation and personnel-related costs, driven by a reduction in stock-based compensation expense, both of which contributed to the year over year decrease in general and administrative expense. Transaction costs incurred during the second quarter of 2017 in connection with our pending merger with IAC's HomeAdvisor business, amounting to \$4.4 million, partially offset the aforementioned year over year reductions in general and administrative expense.

Interest expense

Interest expense for the six months ended June 30, 2017 was \$3.0 million as compared to \$2.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016, reflecting the impact of recurring monthly interest payments on our outstanding long-term debt and monthly interest charges for deferred financing fee and debt discount amortization. The year over year increase in interest expense was primarily attributable to capitalized interest as we ceased capitalizing interest on website and software development as of the end of the first quarter of 2016 in connection with the migration to our new technology platform.

Table of Contents

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

At June 30, 2017, we had \$38.4 million in cash and cash equivalents and \$10.5 million in short-term investments. Cash and cash equivalents consists of bank deposit accounts and money market funds, as well as any investments in certificates of deposit or U.S. Treasury securities with contractual maturities of three months or less, which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. Short-term investments consist of certificates of deposit and U.S. Treasury securities with maturities of more than 90 days but less than one year. To date, the carrying values of these investments approximate their fair values, and we have incurred no material loss in these accounts. We believe our existing cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments will be sufficient to fund our operations for, at a minimum, the next twelve months.

In connection with the execution of the Merger Agreement with IAC on May 1, 2017, we agreed to various customary covenants, including, among others, covenants related to (i) the conduct of our business during the interim period between the execution of the Merger Agreement and the closing of the transaction, (ii) the amendment and restatement of organizational documents, (iii) the acquisition, disposition and transfer of assets, (iv) the entry into material contracts and (v) the issuance, sale, pledge or encumbrance of capital stock. We do not believe the restrictions resulting from these covenants will prevent us from sufficiently funding our operations, including satisfying our obligations and meeting general working capital needs, over the next twelve months.

The Merger Agreement provides certain termination rights for IAC and us. Upon termination of the Merger Agreement under specified circumstances, such as our acceptance of a superior proposal or our Board of Directors withdrawing its recommendation regarding the transaction, we may be required to pay IAC a termination fee of \$20.0 million.

Summary cash flow information for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 is set forth below.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 2016

Net cash provided by operating activities \$8,677 \$14,286

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 2,938 (12,264)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 4,345 (46)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

We generated cash from operating activities of \$8.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017, despite incurring a net loss of \$6.1 million over the same time period, largely attributable to non-cash activity of \$14.9 million, including depreciation and amortization expense of \$8.2 million and stock-based compensation expense of \$6.0 million, as well as a \$7.1 million net increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities as compared to December 31, 2016, which was primarily driven by accrued marketing expenses and the expected timing of payment of these balances. In addition to the net loss incurred during the first half of the year, we experienced significant uses of cash in operating activities during the six months ended June 30, 2017 related to total combined deferred revenue, which declined \$5.3 million from December 31, 2016, and prepaid expenses and other current assets, which increased \$3.2 million from December 31, 2016. The decrease in total combined deferred revenue was primarily the result of the continued impact of the removal of our ratings and reviews paywall in June 2016 on our membership revenue stream,

while the increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets was driven by increases in prepaid commissions and general vendor prepaid expenses.

Cash provided by operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2016 of \$14.3 million was largely attributable to total combined non-cash activity of \$13.3 million, including \$7.5 million in stock-based compensation expense and \$5.3 million in depreciation and amortization expense. Operating cash flow for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was also positively impacted by a \$7.0 million net increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities from December 31, 2015, driven by accrued marketing expenses and the expected timing of payment of these balances, as well as a \$3.5 million one-time contingent liability recorded during the first quarter of 2016 for the Moore litigation. Uses of cash in operations for the period included a \$6.9 million net decrease in deferred revenue, which was primarily the result of near-term pressures on both our membership and service provider revenue streams associated with the migration to our new technology platform and the removal of our ratings and reviews paywall.

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Investing Activities

Cash provided by investing activities of \$2.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 was primarily the result of sales, net of purchases, of short-term investments at maturity, amounting to \$6.1 million, during the first half of 2017, partially offset by \$3.1 million in capital expenditures for property, equipment and software during the period, consisting of \$2.9 million in capitalized website and software development costs related to our technology platform and \$0.2 million for facilities improvements and technology hardware and software.

Our use of cash in investing activities of \$12.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was primarily attributable to \$12.2 million of capital expenditures for property, equipment and software during the period, consisting of \$9.0 million in capitalized website and software development costs related to our technology platform and \$3.2 million for facilities improvements and technology hardware and software.

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Financing Activities

Cash provided by financing activities of \$4.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017 was primarily due to proceeds of \$5.9 million from stock option exercises and \$0.5 million from our employee stock purchase plan, partially offset by \$2.0 million in taxes paid for net share settlements associated with the vesting of restricted stock units and performance awards of restricted stock units.

Net cash used in financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was attributable to the combined impact of taxes paid for net share settlements associated with the vesting of restricted stock units and payments on our capital lease obligation, partially offset by proceeds from stock option exercises.

Debt Obligations

On September 26, 2014, we entered into a financing agreement for a \$60.0 million term loan and a \$25.0 million delayed draw term loan.

On June 10, 2016, we entered into a first amendment to the financing agreement which, among other things, (i) extended the commencement of our quarterly repayment obligations under the term loan from September 30, 2016 to September 30, 2017; (ii) revised the financial covenant for minimum consolidated EBITDA, as defined in the financing agreement, for periods ending after June 30, 2016; (iii) revised the financial covenant related to minimum required liquidity; (iv) removed the financial covenant related to minimum membership revenue for periods ending after March 31, 2016; and (v) modified the basis for the calculation of the applicable interest rate.

On November 1, 2016, we entered into a second amendment to the financing agreement which, among other things, (i) added a new financial covenant related to consolidated active service provider contract value beginning with the period ending December 31, 2016; (ii) revised the financial covenant for minimum consolidated EBITDA, as defined in the financing agreement and subsequently modified under the second amendment, for periods ending after September 30, 2016; (iii) revised the financial covenant related to minimum required liquidity; (iv) modified the basis for the calculation of the applicable interest rate; (v) modified the dates under which the prepayment premium is applicable; and (vi) modified certain terms related to the delayed draw term loan. Additionally, the second amendment set forth a fee to be paid by us to the lender, in three equal annual installments, in connection with the execution of the amendment, and this fee was capitalized along with the existing unamortized fees paid to lender contra liability and is being amortized to interest expense over the remaining term of the financing agreement.

The financing agreement requires monthly interest payments on the first business day of each month until maturity on any principal amounts outstanding under either debt facility. In accordance with the second amendment to the

financing agreement, if our consolidated EBITDA for the trailing four consecutive fiscal quarters is less than \$20.0 million or our qualified cash, as defined in the financing agreement, is less than \$20.0 million as of the applicable period end, amounts outstanding under the financing agreement bear interest at a per annum rate, at our option, equal to (i) the LIBOR rate for the interest period in effect, subject to a floor of 0.5%, plus 9.5% or (ii) the reference rate, which is based on the prime rate as published by the Wall Street Journal, subject to a floor of 3.25%, plus 8.5%. If our qualified cash is greater than \$20.0 million, and our consolidated EBITDA for the trailing four consecutive fiscal quarters is:

greater than \$20.0 million but less than \$25.0 million, the applicable LIBOR interest rate is 8.5%, and the applicable reference interest rate is 7.5%;

• greater than \$25.0 million but less than \$30.0 million, the applicable LIBOR interest rate is 7.5%, and the applicable reference interest rate is 6.5%; or

greater than \$30.0 million, the applicable LIBOR interest rate is 6.5%, and the applicable reference interest rate is 5.5%.

The financing agreement obligates us to make quarterly principal payments on the term loan of \$0.8 million on the last day of each calendar quarter, commencing with the quarter ending September 30, 2017, and to repay the remaining balance of the term loan at maturity. We are required to make principal payments on the outstanding balance of the delayed draw term loan equal to 1.25% of the amount of such loan funded at or prior to the last day of each calendar quarter and to repay the remaining outstanding balance of the delayed draw term loan at maturity. From the effective date of the financing agreement through September 26, 2017, we are also required to pay a commitment fee equal to 0.75% per annum of the unborrowed amounts of the delayed draw term loan.

We may prepay the amounts outstanding under the financing agreement at any time and are required to prepay the loans with (i) the net proceeds of certain asset sales, issuances of debt or equity, and certain casualty events, and (ii) up to 50% of consolidated excess cash flow, as defined in the financing agreement, for each fiscal year during the term of the financing agreement. As specified by the second amendment to the financing agreement, we must pay a 1% premium on prepayments made on or before November 1, 2017, subject to certain exceptions set forth in the financing agreement. Our obligations under the financing agreement are guaranteed by each of our subsidiaries and are secured by first priority security interests in all of their respective assets and a pledge of the equity interests of our subsidiaries. The term loan and the delayed draw term loan mature on September 26, 2019. As of June 30, 2017, we had \$58.1 million in outstanding borrowings under the term loan, net of unamortized deferred financing fees of \$0.9 million and unamortized fees paid to the lender of \$1.0 million, both of which are being amortized into interest expense over the term of the financing agreement, and availability of \$25.0 million under the delayed draw term loan.

The financing agreement contains various restrictive covenants, including restrictions on our ability to dispose of assets, make acquisitions or investments, incur debt or liens, make distributions to stockholders or repurchase outstanding stock, enter into related-party transactions and make capital expenditures, other than upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the financing agreement. We are also required to comply with certain financial covenants, including minimum consolidated EBITDA, as defined in the financing agreement and subsequently modified under the second amendment, minimum liquidity, minimum consolidated active service provider contract value and maximum consolidated capital expenditures. Upon an event of default, which includes certain customary events such as, among other things, a failure to make required payments when due, a failure to comply with covenants, certain bankruptcy and insolvency events, defaults under other material indebtedness, or a change in control, the lenders may accelerate amounts outstanding, terminate the agreement and foreclose on all collateral. We were in compliance with all financial and non-financial covenants at June 30, 2017.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not engage in any off-balance sheet activities, other than long-term operating leases as described herein, nor do we maintain any off-balance sheet interests in variable interest entities, special-purpose entities or other structured finance entities.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations primarily consist of short-term and long-term operating leases expiring through 2021 and long-term debt comprised of a \$60.0 million term loan scheduled to mature on September 26, 2019. In March 2017, we provided notice of termination, effective May 1, 2018, of an operating lease for office space that was previously scheduled to conclude in April 2020, yielding a \$3.5 million reduction in our future minimum lease payment obligations. There were no other significant changes in our contractual obligations during the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2017 from those disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2016. Total combined future minimum payment obligations as of June 30, 2017 under short-term and long-term operating leases amounted to approximately \$2.5 million, including \$1.1 million in 2017, \$0.9 million in 2018, \$0.4 million in 2019 and a total of \$0.1 million in 2020 and 2021 combined. We had \$58.1 million in outstanding borrowings, net of unamortized deferred financing fees and unamortized fees paid to the lender, under the term loan as of June 30, 2017.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our condensed consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of the condensed consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and related disclosures. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis. Our estimates are based on historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Our actual results may differ from these estimates. There were no material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates from those described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For detailed information regarding recently issued accounting pronouncements and the expected impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements, see Note 1, "Description of Business, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" in the accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 of Part I of this Form 10-Q.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

There were no material changes in our exposure to market risk since the disclosure in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016. Please refer to Part II, Item 7A "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 for a more complete discussion of the market risks we encounter.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain "disclosure controls and procedures," as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), designed to ensure information required to be disclosed by us in reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by Rules 13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act that occurred during the second quarter of 2017 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Information pertaining to legal proceedings can be found in Note 8, "Commitments and Contingencies," in the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and is incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. In addition to the information set forth in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including in the section entitled "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," you should carefully consider the risk factors discussed in Part I, Item 1A, "Risk Factors," in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 and in Part II, Item 1A, "Risk Factors," in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2017, as well as the risk factors discussed below, each of which could materially affect our business, financial condition, operating results, cash flows or future prospects. These risks are not the only risks facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial may also become important factors that materially affect our business, financial condition or future results. The trading price of our common stock could decline due to any of these risks or uncertainties, and you may lose all or part of your investment as a result.

Risks Related to the Transactions

There can be no assurances regarding the prices at which Class A shares of ANGI Homeservices Inc. will trade following the completion of the Transactions.

Assuming the Merger is completed as described elsewhere herein, some or all of our stockholders will receive shares of Class A common stock ("Class A shares") of ANGI Homeservices Inc. ("ANGI Homeservices") as a result of the Merger. The Class A shares of ANGI Homeservices are not and never have been listed for trading on a national securities exchange or otherwise publicly traded. Such shares are expected to be approved for listing on NASDAQ prior to the completion of the Merger, and such approval for listing is one of the conditions to the completion of the Merger.

The trading price of a Class A share of ANGI Homeservices following the Merger is uncertain, and there can be no assurances as to the values at which Class A shares will trade following the Merger. In addition, following the Merger, the trading price of Class A shares of ANGI Homeservices is likely to fluctuate and will be dependent on, and subject to fluctuations relating to, general market and economic conditions, changes in our business or the HomeAdvisor business (whether prior to or following the completion of the Merger), and regulatory considerations, among other things. Some of these factors and conditions are beyond our control or the control of the HomeAdvisor business or ANGI Homeservices.

Our stockholders who elect to receive cash consideration may receive a prorated portion of their Merger consideration in the form of share consideration if the aggregate cap on the cash consideration of \$130.0 million is exceeded.

Each of our stockholders will be entitled to elect to receive in the Merger, for each share of our common stock held at the effective time of the Merger (the "Effective Time"), share consideration or cash consideration (or a combination thereof, by electing cash consideration with respect to some shares and share consideration with respect to other shares held by such stockholder). Elections to receive cash consideration by our stockholders will be subject to the proration procedures set forth in the Merger Agreement, such that our stockholders will receive in the aggregate no more than

\$130.0 million in cash.

Depending on the elections made by our stockholders, the aggregate cash consideration cap of \$130.0 million may be exceeded, in which case our stockholders who properly elected to receive cash consideration in the Merger will receive a portion of their Merger consideration in respect of our shares for which cash consideration was properly elected in the form of share consideration. Stockholders who receive share consideration will be subject to a number of additional risks relating to ANGI Homeservices and its Class A shares (including the market for buying and selling such shares), as discussed elsewhere herein.

Our stockholders who make elections to receive share consideration or cash consideration will be unable to sell their shares of our common stock while the Merger remains pending.

Our stockholders may elect to receive cash, stock or a combination of cash and stock for their shares of our common stock in the Merger by completing an election form that will be sent under separate cover. Elections will require that stockholders making the election submit their shares of our common stock, including any stock certificates, or in the case of book-entry shares of our common stock, any additional documents specified in the procedures set forth in the election form, in order for the election to be properly made. This means that during the time between when the election is made and the date the Merger closes, our stockholders who have submitted an election form to receive share consideration or cash consideration will be unable to sell the shares of our common stock with respect to which any such election has been made unless they first withdraw their election. If the Merger is unexpectedly delayed, this period could extend for a significant period of time. Our stockholders can shorten the period during which they cannot sell their shares by delivering their election shortly before the election deadline. However, elections received after the election deadline will not be accepted or honored.

Both individually and as a group, our stockholders will have significantly reduced ownership and voting interests in ANGI Homeservices after the Merger relative to their interests in Angie's List prior to the Merger, and, with limited exceptions for certain class votes, IAC will be able to control any corporate action that requires a vote of ANGI Homeservices stockholders, in addition to appointing a majority of the board of directors.

Our stockholders currently have the right to vote in the election of our board of directors and on other matters affecting our business. Upon the consummation of the Merger, each of our stockholders that receives share consideration will become a stockholder of ANGI Homeservices with a percentage ownership of ANGI Homeservices that is significantly smaller than such stockholder's percentage ownership of Angie's List immediately prior to the Merger. Immediately following the closing of the Merger, depending on the number of our stockholders that elect to receive cash consideration, former holders of our common stock and equity awards are expected to hold, in the aggregate, Class A shares representing between approximately 10% (assuming our stockholders elect to receive the maximum aggregate cash consideration) and 13% (assuming none of our stockholders elect to receive cash consideration) of the economic interest in ANGI Homeservices common stock (on a fully diluted basis, calculated using the treasury stock method), and less than 2% of the total voting power of ANGI Homeservices common stock, and IAC is expected to hold shares of Class B common stock ("Class B shares") of ANGI Homeservices which, together with Class A shares underlying equity awards in respect of HomeAdvisor, Inc. to be converted into awards in respect of ANGI Homeservices, will represent between approximately 87% and 90% of the economic interest (on a fully diluted basis, calculated using the treasury stock method) and approximately 98% of the total voting power of ANGI Homeservices common stock.

On this basis, with limited exceptions for certain class votes, IAC will be able to control any corporate action that requires a vote of ANGI Homeservices stockholders, in addition to appointing a majority of the board of directors.

The completion of the Transactions is subject to a number of conditions, some of which are outside our control or the control of IAC or ANGI Homeservices, and the Transactions may not be completed on a timely basis or at all. Failure to complete the Transactions could negatively impact our share price and/or our future business and financial results.

The completion of the Merger is subject to a number of conditions, some of which are outside our control or the control of IAC or ANGI Homeservices, and the failure to satisfy any such condition, or delays or difficulties that may occur in attempting to satisfy any such conditions, may prevent, delay or otherwise impair the completion of the Transactions in a material way. These conditions include, the adoption of the Merger Agreement by our stockholders and the expiration or termination of the applicable waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, and as a result, there exists some uncertainty regarding the timing of the

completion of the Transactions, and whether the Transactions will be completed at all. Furthermore, we or IAC may terminate the Merger Agreement in specified circumstances, including if the Merger has not been consummated on or prior to February 1, 2018 (provided that this right to terminate will not be available to a party if the failure of the closing to occur by such date was due to a material breach of the Merger Agreement by the party seeking to terminate).

If the Transactions are not completed on a timely basis, or at all, our business, financial results and prospects, as well as the market price of our common stock, may be adversely affected and, without realizing any of the potential benefits of having completed the Transactions, we (including our stockholders) will be subject to a number of risks, including the following:

we will be required to pay IAC a termination fee of \$20.0 million if the Merger Agreement is terminated in specified circumstances;

time and resources spent or committed by our management to matters relating to the Transactions (including integration planning and expenses for professional services and other transaction costs, many of which are payable by us regardless of whether or not the Transactions are consummated) that could otherwise have been devoted to pursuing other beneficial opportunities will have been largely wasted;

negative publicity and a negative impression of us in the business community; and

if the Merger Agreement is terminated and our board of directors seeks an alternative business combination, our stockholders cannot be certain that we will be able to find a party willing to enter into a transaction agreement on terms equivalent to, or more attractive than, the terms that IAC has agreed to in the Transactions.

While the Transactions are pending, uncertainty regarding the completion of the Transactions may cause consumers, service professionals and other important business counterparties to delay or defer decisions concerning us and may adversely affect our ability to attract and retain employees, consumers and service professionals.

The Merger will be completed only if specified conditions are satisfied (or, to the extent permitted, waived), including the adoption of the Merger Agreement by our stockholders. The satisfaction of some of these conditions is beyond our control or the control of IAC or ANGI Homeservices. In addition, we, and IAC, possess specified rights to terminate the Merger Agreement in various circumstances.

While the Transactions remain pending, uncertainty regarding whether (and when) the Transactions may be completed may cause consumers, service professionals or other parties with whom we have business relationships to delay or defer decisions concerning us, or to seek to terminate their relationships with us, which could negatively impact our financial condition and results of operations, regardless of whether the Transactions are ultimately completed. In addition, such consumers, service professionals or other parties may experience uncertainty associated with the Merger, including with respect to concerns about possible changes to our technology platform, including website and mobile applications, products, services or policies and current or future business relationships with us. Such uncertainty may cause such consumers, service professionals or other parties to refrain from using our products and services, potentially yielding a reduction in traffic across our platforms, all of which could negatively and materially impact our business, financial condition or results of operations. Similarly, uncertainty regarding the completion of the Transactions may foster uncertainty among employees about their future roles with the combined company, and may create difficulties in recruiting new employees, consumers and service professionals who may be similarly concerned by the various pending changes and uncertainties. As such, the pendency of the Transactions may adversely affect our ability to attract and retain key management, sales, marketing and technical personnel, as well as new consumers and service professionals.

Additionally, pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, we are subject to certain covenants regarding the conduct of our business during the interim period between the execution of the Merger Agreement and the completion of the Transactions, including covenants related to our ability to enter into material contracts and acquire or dispose of assets. These covenants may prevent us from taking actions with respect to our business that we may consider advantageous and result in our inability to respond effectively to competitive pressures or industry developments, among other things, which could thereby harm our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Some of our current directors and executive officers have interests in the Transactions that may differ from the interests of our other stockholders.

Some members of our management and board of directors may have interests in the Merger that differ from, or are in addition to, their interests as our stockholders. These interests include:

the rights of some executive officers to receive payments or other benefits, including the conversion of certain stock options and restricted stock unit awards, acceleration of the vesting of certain equity awards, and possible payments due upon certain terminations of employment during a specified period prior to or following a change in control;

the expected service of Angela R. Hicks Bowman and Thomas R. Evans as directors of ANGI Homeservices following the Merger;

an employment agreement expected to be entered into between ANGI Homeservices and Angela R. Hicks Bowman providing for her continued service to ANGI Homeservices following the closing of the Merger; and

the continued indemnification of our directors and officers after the completion of the Transactions for acts or omissions that occurred in their capacity as directors or officers prior to the closing of the Transactions.

The Merger Agreement contains provisions that limit our ability to pursue alternatives to the Transactions, could discourage a potential competing acquiror from making a favorable alternative transaction proposal and, in specified circumstances, could require us to pay a termination fee of \$20.0 million to IAC.

The Merger Agreement contains provisions that restrict our ability during the pendency of the Merger to, among other things, solicit, initiate, knowingly facilitate or knowingly encourage any inquiries regarding, or the making, submission or announcement by any person of any proposal or offer that constitutes or would reasonably be expected to lead to, certain alternative transactions. In addition, IAC is generally entitled to an opportunity to offer to modify the terms of the Merger Agreement in response to any third-party alternative transaction proposal before our board of directors may change its recommendation in favor of the adoption of the Merger Agreement or terminate the Merger Agreement to accept an alternative proposal.

Moreover, if the Merger Agreement is terminated in specified circumstances, including if we terminate the Merger Agreement in order to enter into a definitive agreement providing for a superior proposal, we will be required to pay a termination fee of \$20.0 million to IAC.

These provisions could discourage a potential third-party acquirer or Merger partner that might have an interest in acquiring all or a significant portion of our business, or pursuing another form of alternative transaction involving us, from considering or proposing such a transaction, even if the third party was prepared to pay consideration having greater perceived value than that of the share consideration and cash consideration being offered in the Merger. In addition, these provisions might result in a potential third-party acquiror or merger partner proposing to pay a lower price to our stockholders than it might otherwise have proposed to pay because of the added expense of the \$20.0 million termination fee that may become payable in specified circumstances.

Our stockholders will not be entitled to dissenters' or appraisal rights in the Merger.

Appraisal rights are statutory rights that, if applicable under law, enable stockholders to dissent from an extraordinary transaction, such as a merger, and demand that the corporation pay the fair value for their shares as determined by a court in a judicial proceeding instead of receiving the consideration offered to stockholders in connection with such extraordinary transaction.

Appraisal rights are not available in all circumstances, and exceptions to these rights are provided under the Delaware General Corporation Law ("DGCL"). In the Merger, because our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ, and because our stockholders are not required to accept in the Merger any consideration in exchange for their shares of our common stock other than Class A shares of ANGI Homeservices, which will be publicly listed on the NASDAQ, and cash in lieu of fractional shares (if applicable), holders of our common stock will not be entitled to any appraisal rights in connection with the Merger with respect to their shares of our common stock.

ANGI Homeservices may not realize the expected benefits of the Transactions on the anticipated timeframes or at all.

The benefits of the Transactions to ANGI Homeservices and its stockholders following the Merger may not be realized as expected or may not be achieved within the anticipated timeframes or at all. The ability of ANGI Homeservices to realize the anticipated benefits of the Transactions will depend, to a large extent, on its ability to combine the HomeAdvisor business with our business in a manner that facilitates growth opportunities, realizes anticipated synergies and achieves the projected cost savings and revenue growth expected by IAC and our management.

We, together with IAC, will be required to devote significant attention and resources prior to the closing of the Merger to prepare for the post-closing operation of ANGI Homeservices, and ANGI Homeservices will be required

post-closing to devote significant attention and resources to successfully align the business practices and integrate the operations of the HomeAdvisor business and our business. This process may disrupt the businesses or cause a loss of momentum in the activities of ANGI Homeservices following the closing of the Merger and may adversely affect its business and results of operations. The overall combination of the HomeAdvisor business and our business may also result in unanticipated problems, expenses, liabilities, responses from competitors, loss of customer and other business relationships and the diversion of management attention. If ANGI Homeservices is not able to efficiently and successfully integrate the HomeAdvisor business with our business following the Merger, the anticipated benefits of the Transactions may not be realized fully or at all or may take longer to realize than expected, which would have a negative effect on the business and financial results of the combined company and on the value of the Class A shares to be issued to our stockholders who receive share consideration in the Merger.

Even if the operations of the HomeAdvisor business and our business are combined successfully, the full benefits of the Transactions may not be realized, including the synergies, cost savings and growth opportunities that are expected, due to competitive pressures, changes in general market or economic conditions or other factors. Moreover, additional unanticipated costs may be incurred in combining the HomeAdvisor business and our business. All of these factors could negatively impact the business and financial results of ANGI Homeservices and the market price of ANGI Homeservices Class A shares.

The outcome of legal proceedings that have been instituted or legal proceedings that may be instituted in the future against us in connection with the Merger could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Since the announcement of the Merger, two putative securities class action complaints have been filed, naming us, our directors and IAC as defendants, in connection with IAC's acquisition of us. The lawsuits allege that we, as well as our directors, violated Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by omitting certain financial information from the Form S-4 Registration Statement filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the Merger. The lawsuits seek, among other things, equitable relief, including additional disclosure in the Form S-4 Registration Statement, an injunction of the Merger and costs and expenses of the litigation, including attorneys' fees. Legal proceedings instituted against us with respect to the Merger could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

None.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

		Incorporated by Reference				
Exhibi No.	Exhibit Description	Form	File No.	Exhibit	Filing Date	Filed Herewith
	Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Angie's List,					
2.01	Inc., IAC/InterActiveCorp, Halo TopCo, Inc. and Casa	8-K	001-35339	2.1	5/3/2017	
	Merger Sub, Inc., dated as of May 1, 2017					
<u>3.01</u>	Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation	S-1/A	333-176503	3.1	10/31/2011	
3.02	Amended and Restated Bylaws	S-1/A	333-176503	3.2	10/31/2011	
10.01	Angie's List, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan †	DEF	001-35339	Appendix	4/20/2015	
<u>10.01</u>	Aligie's List, flic. Employee Stock Furchase Flair	14A	001-33339	A	4/30/2013	
10.02	Annia's List Ing 2017 Omnibus Insentive Plan +	DEF	001 35330	Appendix 4/28/2017		
<u>10.02</u>	Angie's List, Inc. 2017 Omnibus Incentive Plan †		001-33339	A	4/20/2017	

31.01 31.02	Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to	X		
	Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act	Λ		
	Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to	X		
	Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act	Λ		
32.01	Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to	X		
<u>32.01</u>	Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act *	Λ		
32.02	Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to	X		
<u>32.02</u>	Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act *	Λ		
	Interactive Data Files Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation			
	S-T: (i) Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June			
	30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, (ii) Condensed			
101	Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and six	X		
101	months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, (iii) Condensed	71		
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three and six			
	months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 and (iv) Notes to			
	Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements			
A T. 11.				

[†] Indicates management contract or compensatory plan. * Furnished, not filed.

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on July 27, 2017.

ANGIE'S LIST, INC.

By: /s/ CHARLES HUNDT

Name: Charles Hundt

Chief Accounting Officer
Title: (Duly Authorized Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)

EXHIBIT INDEX

	Incorporated by Reference					
Exhibi No.	t Exhibit Description	Form	File No.	Exhibit	Filing Date	Filed Herewith
<u>2.01</u>	Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Angie's List, Inc., IAC/InterActiveCorp, Halo TopCo, Inc. and Casa Merger Sub, Inc., dated as of May 1, 2017	8-K	001-35339	2.1	5/3/2017	
3.01 3.02	Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation Amended and Restated Bylaws		333-176503 333-176503	33.2	10/31/2011 10/31/2011	
<u>10.01</u>	Angie's List, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan †	DEF 14A	001-35339	11	4/30/2015	
<u>10.02</u>	Angie's List, Inc. 2017 Omnibus Incentive Plan †	DEF 14A	001-35339	Appendix A	4/28/2017	
31.01	Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act					X
<u>31.02</u>	Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act					X
<u>32.01</u>	Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act*					X
32.02	Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act*					X
101	Interactive Data Files Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T: (i) Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, (iii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 and (iv) Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements rates management contract or compensatory plan.					X

 $[\]dagger$ Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.

^{*} Furnished, not filed.